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Internal Investigation ({Informal Inquiry): Sgt. B, Officers U, V, X, Y, 2 and AA

A review of the case files shows Captain Wagner being assigned to conduct an informal inquiry into
the conduct of the above listed officers relative to an occurrence at an ice rink on December 2, 2017.
This task was assigned by Deputy Chief Morin after receiving a complaint from the Attorney General's
Office as to the conduct of sald officers. Some of the content provided appears to have been unable to
be reviewed due to technological issues. Rather than finding technology that would allow for the agency
to view this video content, a document stating that the Apple videos were not compatible with the
program available was offered. (After the incident was highlighted in local media, the third video was
accessed.) Amemorandum summarizing a partial review of the information from the Attorney General's
Office stated that the Salem PD had not received a formal complaint. No attempt was made to contact
any of the parties involved in the incident. It is Kroil's opinion that this is an incomplete investigative
effort and should not have been handled as an informal inquiry when it clearly meets the criteria for a
formal complaint and a subsequent investigation. While the allegation is not the most serious in nature
we have seen, the pattern of handling complaints from the public informally, incompletely and without
regard to the definitions established in the Salem PD’s General Orders are consistent across all levels

of severity of allegation.

On December 2, 2017, four Salem PD officers arrested a youth hockey coach, after tazing him and
wrestling him to the ground. Spectators claimed that he had done nothing wrong, and one officer was
seen attempting to distract people from videotaping the incident by flashing his flashlight at the crowd.

The suspect's lawyer filed a complaint with the Attorney General's Office, including with his complaint
15 affidavits of witness statements supporting the deferise’s allegations and three cell phone videos.
The Attorney General's Office concluded that there was no criminality in the officers’ actions and
referred the matter to the Salem PD for administrative review. In the letter sent to Anderson's attorney
by the Attorney General, there was no direction to contact Salem PD to submit a formal complaint, and
even though the attorney submitted a formal written complaint to the Attorney General's Office alleging
improper arrest, excessive force, unprofessional behavior and intimidation of witnesses, the Salem PD
still has yet to initiate a formal A investigation. It is the department's belief that until the arrestee
appeérs at the Salem PD and submits a formal written complaint, there is no need by the department
to conduct a formal review. Note, again, the department'’s policy that formal investigations be issued in
writing or must allege “criminal misconduct or similar serious offense:”
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FQ{!MAL COMPLAINT ~ A complaint received under the above guidelines that is submitted in
writing, where the complainant is available for follow.up investigation, interview, and/or the
complaint alleges criminal misconduet or similar serious offense.

INFO.R.‘W{L COMPLAINT - A complaint, as defined aboveg, that is reccived anonymously, or
by an identifiable subject net secking action but supplying the information as advisory. to be
used as see t.’n. Informal complaint, during the course of review. may become Formal
Compleints if a complainant steps Fferwanid and fites 8 more in-depth repon, or if circumstances

or information dictate an a more in-depth investigation is appropriate.

INTERNAL COMPLAINT INVESTIGATION (ICI) - The action taken on acomplaint. This
in-depth, thoml.sgh investigation requires an ICI number assigaed. full documentation of all
action tken, with all factual information gathered forwarded o the Chief of Police for review
and discipline, if deemed necessary.

*Salem PD General Order 85-7

While a formal IA investigation was not initiated, Deputy Chief Morin does assign Captain Wagner to
conduct an informal inquiry. The captain reviewed the complaint with the Attorney General's
investigator, reviewed the 15 witness affidavits and reviewed two of the three videos, as he was unable
to access the third. (After he wrote his report unfounding the complaint, he was able to open the third
video.) He also reviewed the reports previously filed by the officers and drafted a report closing out the
informal investigation less than 24 hours after being tasked with the review. His report is dated March
13, 2018. Kroll notes that the department never issued notices to the officers informing them that a
complaint was filed against them and that an investigation was being conducted, which violates the
CBA. (This appears to occur aimost every time there Is an informal inquiry.) There were no interviews
of independent witnesses, no canvasing of the surroundings where the incident occurred for video
footage and no interviews of hockey rink staff who may have provided an independent version of
events. The captain did not reach out to the complainant’s attarney or any of the individuals who signed
affidavits, including one who is a Massachusetts State Trooper and who allegedly heiped calm tensions
and physically assisted the Salem PD in keeping people back during the arrest. In his report, the
captain noted that the affidavits all contained similar statements, appeared to be rehearsed and some
appeared to be “cut and pasted,” indicating to him an air of bias, and effectively closed out the informal

Inquiry.

Relative to the amount of time spent by Captain Wagner on the informal inquiry, Deputy Chief Morin
states:
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MR. LINSKEY: And then, you know, so the inquiry comes into you, you give it to
Wagner, this is basically the -- the informal inquiry and he got it on -- you got it on
March 12 and he’s completed it on March 13th.

DEPUTY CHIEF MORIN: | got it on March 9th.

MR. LINSKEY: March 9th?

DEPUTY CHIEF MORIN: Yeah, | think that's when:

MR. LINSKEY: He got it on March 12th?

DEPUTY CHIEF MORIN: Yeah, because | talked to Lisa Wolford® before.

MR. LINSKEY: Yup.

DEPUTY CHIEF MORIN: Where's her original letter; is it March 9th?

MR. LINSKEY: Yeah.

DEPUTY CHIEF MORIN: March 9th is her original letter?

MR. LINSKEY: Drafted a cover letter.

DEPUTY CHIEF MORIN: Yup.

MR. LINSKEY: But the — the -- the Captain got a request on March 12th -

DEPUTY CHIEF MORIN: Yup.

MR. LINSKEY: - and was finished with it by March 13th. Is that a short period of time
for that? | mean, that’s one of the bigger kind of complaints you guys have around here;
right?

DEPUTY CHIEF MORIN: Yeah, but it - it - he reviewed everything, he made the
contacts with the officers that he needed lo, he read the reports; okay? So, we're
efficient, 1 don't know - and again, we've yet lo hear from Dabella’™ and instead what
we get is we get a 91A"® request from WBZ; okay?

Kroll then asks Deputy Chief Morin if it would be a more thorough and fair investigation if they
interviewed those that signed affidavits. His response is as follows:

MR. LINSKEY: Did -- any thought of speaking to the Massachuseits State Trooper who
was there?

DEPUTY CHIEF MORIN: No.

MR. LINSKEY: Why not?

DEPUTY CHIEF MORIN: Why?

13 Senior Assistant Atlorney General Lisa Wolford
" Attorney Christopher DiBella
5 The Right to Know Law RSA 91-A:4 grants all citizens the right to access public records.
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MR. LINSKEY: Because he's a law enforcement official who would be expected and
required to give an independent raview as to what he saw.

DEPUTY CHIEF MORIN: And if you read his statement it's pretly clear that it's more of
a character reference. We saw his aclions in there, he wasn't condemning the actions
of the police department.

MR. LINSKEY: You would say he was — he was assisting you guys.

DEPUTY CHIEF MORIN: He was assisting us. When he realized that it was his buddy
— his statement was a characler reference, that this -- this has to be a
misunderstanding and it probably -- | don't disagree that the coach probably was lrying
lo, but what I do disagree with is that when the officers told him to step off, put your
hands down, relax, he did not do that, and when he was -- when they grabbed hold of
him, he didn‘t say okay guys, this is Jjust @ big misunderstanding and put his bands
behind his back, he continued to, whether he thought he was justified in doing it or not,
that's not the case; okay? So, the — | read the, I think he’s a detective —

MR. LINSKEY: Yup.

DEPUTY CHIEF MORIN: — in Mass State Police, again, it was a character reference.
He didn't say the officers did X, Y, and Z wrong or anything like that. In fact, in the video
he’s assisting, he's saying let them do their job, let ~ let them - stand back, let them
do their job.

MR. LINSKEY: So probably a fair ended minded --

DEPUTY CHIEF MORIN: Yeah.

MR. LINSKEY: So, if you're looking for a fair — look at the, -

DEPUTY CHIEF MORIN: Yeabh.

MR. LINSKEY: — you know, somebady from the other side who says, look, this is what
{1 saw —

DEPUTY CHIEF MORIN: If —

MR. LINSKEY: — and there’s no thought of reaching out to him to get his version of
evenls?

DEPUTY CHIEF MORIN: There is no complaint. There is no - when they come in and
file a complaint, which they will not do, —

MR. LINSKEY: So if they came In tomorrow and filed a complaint, --

DEPUTY CHIEF MORIN: Absolutely.

MR. LINSKEY: — you would interview all of those psople?

DEPUTY CHIEF MORIN: Absolutely.

MR. LINSKEY: What if it's within the six months’ time period?
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DEPUTY CHIEF MORIN: Six months?

MR. LINSKEY: Yeah.

DEPUTY CHIEF MORIN: It has to be within six months, it can’t be afler six months, but
yeah.

MR. LINSKEY: So if they file -- Just — and this just goes to your CBA, if they filed six
months and one day and they come up with a video that shows six ways lo Sunday
guys were swearing and throwing rocks and boitles and you guys under your CBA
could not take action for discipline, you could investigate it, but you couldn't tale
discipline?

DEPUTY CHIEF MORIN: If we had a situation in which - let's go back to Officer I
MR. LINSKEY: Yup.

DEPUTY CHIEF MORIN: Six months and a day it came back that he split the guy over
the head with a flashiight and we didn’t know that, | don't care about the CBA, I'm going
to fire his ass.

MR. LINSKEY: Okay. And then it would just work out in the grievance process, he could
fight it. |

DEPUTY CHIEF MORIN: Whatever.

Kroll further notes that relative to the ice rink investigation, the informal inquiry was conducted in less
than 24 hours without any actions other than reading the decuments and examining two of the three
videos. Captain Wagner did not interview any of the witnesses, as their statements were considered
to have an air of bias and favoritism towards the complainant. However, with that logic, then the
involved officers’ statements should also be disregarded, as they are all acquaintances and co-workers,
and their reports could also be considered biased toward the Salem PD. Further, one of the witnesses
is a swomn law enforcement officer who, according to several law enforcement and civilian statem ents,
assisted the Salem PD. Despite his actions that night at the ice center, he agreed to complete and sign
an affidavit against fellow swom law enforcement officers to support the complainant, and even his

statement was disregarded.

Kroll also interviewed Captain Wagner, who as noted above, has never received any formal training in
conducting |A investigations. Captain Wagner stated the following as to the thoroughness of his
informal inquiry into the occurrence at the ice rink:

CAPTAIN WAGNER: However, to give you a -- and you have if, 0 you - so you know
that I've done it, wa received a - the Ice Center, —

Privale and Confidential 78



? ?

A Dhvision of Drummond Woodsum
DUFF&PHELPS

" B) Kroll.

MR. LINSKEY: Yup.

CAPTAIN WAGNER: - we never received a complaint for that, still haven't to this day,
no phone calls, Attorney Dabella was asked to contact me, my name directly.

MR. LINSKEY: Who asked?

CAPTAIN WAGNER: The AG's office.

MR. LINSKEY: Did anyone confirm with the AG’s office that they asked the attorney to
do that?

CAPTAIN WAGNER: Nope -- nope, but —

MR. LINSKEY: Would that be — would that be something that would be helpful if
somebody is saying, ook, you guys never even reached out to the attorney —
CAPTAIN WAGNER: With all due respect, Dan, I'm not chasing down complainants, if J
they want to file a complaint and they've been given direction to contact me, and ! - |
welcome them to call me, it — it's out there but they — but they chose to do other things
MR. LINSKEY: Roger that.

CAPTAIN WAGNER: - like contact media, contact, you know, newspapers and sef up
this whole charade fo make their client the victim, I'm not chasing them down for their
complaint. I'm here, I'm willing to take it, I'm willing to sit down and speak with them,
all - although at — at this point | think that there's issue with that because of — of

the -- the witnesses and -- and | can’t really speak to the defendant right now because
he's represent -

MR. LINSKEY: Why not?

CAPTAIN WAGNER: Because he's represented by - by his attorney. If I'm going to be
questioning him about --

MR. LINSKEY: Well you can't speak to him about his criminal case, you can speak to
him about his complaint.

CAPTAIN WAGNER: Bul that's the criminal case, that's part of the criminal case, |
mean, evidence of what occurred during that, that's going lo be part of it, so probably
not the best time to be speaking to him. Secondly, ! did take what the AG sent me, you
have the CD, ] did review every stalement on there, ! reviewed all the officer’s reports,
{1 did do an informal inquiry and looked into it even though | didn't receive a formal
complaint,

MR. LINSKEY: Okay. So an informal inquiry was initiated because the email from —
because of the letter from the AG

CAPTAIN WAGNER: Yes.
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MR. LINSKEY: - and you did that - were going to do that, you evaluated all the wrilten
documents from the people who put it in, —
CAPTAIN WAGNER: Yeah.
MR. LINSKEY: - you read all the written reports from the officers, and you reviewed
the videotapes. Were you able to get the third video to open?
CAPTAIN WAGNER: | was.
MR. LINSKEY: Okay.
MR. LINSKEY: Three years from now if this were in Court and you’re on the stand
defending your response, would it be better for the Town of Salem and the officers who
were being possibly sued if your response was, well, | shouldn 't have to chase people
down, but | reached out, here’s an email | sent to the allorney saying that I've become
aware of a complaint from the Attomey General’s Office, please call me at this number,
if you have any issues or concems I'd like to go over these complaints and see what
you have lo say. There's a process we have in place, 1'd be. willing to put it forward, let
me know what your client wauld like to do; would it be better for you and Salem PD to
have that document on file saying that, look, we — we think this is all a bunch of bull,
we don’t — we don’t — we think this is an attorney who's trying to use the media for his
side, we've got this report from the AG, the AG'’s declined criminal, and what's - the -
all the AG can do is say criminal; right? So, it's criminality, civil rights violations; right?
if it's rules and regulation, F bombs, excessive kicks, telling people, you know, if you‘re
CAPTAIN WAGNER: I'll stop you right there because the only thing that -- that is
missing from this is me calling or -- or reaching out to — to the attorney. | - 1 felt it was
sufficient that the authority that he decided to complain to, which was a tactical move
on his part | feel, he complained to the AG's office, the highest law enforcement

authority in the state, —

MR. LINSKEY: Yup.
CAPTAIN WAGNER: — and then it was —~ the complaint, it wasn't rejected but it was

unfounded, so there was - there was no criminal wrong doing, no civil rights violations

MR. LINSKEY: Right.
CAPTAIN WAGNER: - in -- in their opinion, and it was returned to him with instruction
to contact Captain Wagner, | have the letter from the AG, so what — what they sent to

him,

Private and Confidential

A Didsion of Drummond Woodsum

81



Bl Kroll.

A Division of

DUFF&PHELPS

MR. LINSKEY: And did —

CAPTAIN WAGNER: ~ and --

MR. LINSKEY: So, you have the letler the AG sent to him?

CAPTAIN WAGNER: Yesh.

MR. LINSKEY: And it says contact Captain Wagner?

CAPTAIN WAGNER: | believe so, yeah.

MR. LINSKEY: Okay. We don’t have that.

CAPTAIN WAGNER: Okay.

MR. LINSKEY: All we have is the — your report that says the AG said that she was
going to have him reach out to me, that's —

CAPTAIN WAGNER: I'll try — when we take a break or whalever, I'fl - Ill -

MR. LINSKEY: But that's exactly what I'm look — is there a documentation that says,
look, —

CAPTAIN WAGNER: Let me see, I'll pull it out and see if it — it might have been one
that came in after the fact -

MR. LINSKEY: Okay.

CAPTAIN WAGNER: — so maybe you didn't get it in that original — when we sent out
those —~ the reproductions of all the - the informals and the IAs that you guys got, —
MR. LINSKEY: Yup.

CAPTAIN WAGNER: - it very well may have been not here yet, -

MR. LINSKEY: Okay.
CAPTAIN WAGNER: -- so, I'll look and see if that's in the — | have — | have the file.

MR. LINSKEY: Then we would both be in agreement that that’s a better position for
Salem PD to defend, to say —

CAPTAIN WAGNER: Yeah, | - 1 suppose it would be a — a better but in the same token
there's also — | don't feel there’s anything wrong with — with the way it was done. This
guy is an atlorney, he defends people for a living, —

MR. LINSKEY: Yup.

CAPTAIN WAGNER: ~ he knows what to do, he knows where we are. If he so chose
to make a complaint, he would do it with us if he wanted to, he knows it - he — it can
be done and how to do it, it wouldn't be his first go around.

MR. LINSKEY: Sure.

CAPTAIN WAGNER: He certainly figured out where to find the AGs and he certainly

figured out where to find Chery! Fiandaca and —~ and every other person involved in*
this debacle that’s out on the media, one sided debacle, he totally figured that out on
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his own, so do I need o leave him a trail of breadcrumbs to come in here and ~ and
T# out a complaint or did —~ did he have no intention of ever doing that? That’s

my pasition on that.
MR. LINSKEY: Okay.

meamymWMMWWNWW&ngammgWs
incicent. WBZ TV repocter Cheryd Fiandaca ran an on-air story with several individuals critical of the arrest
dmehodseycaad\atmebemmmmmmwbmhfomaﬁonofﬁuerfmmeBostm
Police Depastment and worked for Former Chief Linskey in that capacity. Kroll had been provided the IA
e conceming the ice tink prior to the story airing: however, the reports were in a file box in Kroll's office
space. which was not accessed w3 Chief Linskey relumed from international travel. Reporis are also
beleved to have been proviced 1o the attomay and defendant. Since leaving BPD, Chief Linskey has not
had contact with Cheryl Fiandaca except by direct Twitter messages on three occasions - the last being
on December 6, 2016 before she sent a Enk to the story she was airing over Twilter on April 26, 2018 saying
she heard he may be invclved in a review of the Salem PD. Linskey responded that he was on vacation.
Linskey rettzned on ktay 1, 2018. On kay 2, he went {0 the Kroll office and brought the case files concerning
Salem out of their box for review whie traveting domesticaily on another ciient matter. It was then that he
reviewed the ice center report for the first ime. Chief Donovan wrole a letter to the town manager stating
that he was concemed that the Kroll team provided the documents lo the news. Kroll has addressed this
issue with the chief and several others. Kroll takes the integrily of their cases axtremely sericusly and did
not share any docusments with anyone other than the Kroll team.

Kroll has included heretio the letter sent by the Attomney General's Office to the complainant, the letter
sent ta the Salem PD and the letter sent to the plaintiff's attomey, Christopher Dibella, which states,
“As mentioned when we spoke, | have referred your complaint and materials to the Salem Police

Department for administrative review.”
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Christopher DiBclle, Keq,
DiBells Law Offices, P.C.
35 Osgoud Surest
Metbuea, MA 01844

By enodl, and emall to: Cuieomsotieilaime gice eom

Dvar Anomcy DiBella,

As 1 said | would, T have reviowod the witncss starements and video clips you provided to
this offica in conjunction with your complaint ebout Salem Potice Department officers who
sespondad to the Salem feentor on December 2, 2017, T also reviewed the polie seports about the
tngident.

The witness statements you provided suggest thal parents aftending an iec hockoy game
that night beczve ongry at ous ar more hockey officiols. The geme became “contentivus,”
craotivits “escaluted,” and pareats engaged in “verbal abuse.” Afler tho game endod, scveral
parenzs am both teams continued 1o kave “hested™ diswcussions,

Joltn Gritfin wes one of the parenis who was still “heated™ afler the game. He argued
with 8 maa end his wife. Bob Andersen stepped in between M. Oriffia and the others and raised
his arms. One witaoss said that it appeared that Qriffin and Andersen were “baving s serfous
discussion.”™ .\ccording 10 sevornl of tho witnars sistements, o lattooced oflicer (Sergeamt Bagley)
rushed up to Mr. Andersen, pushed and/er grabbed him, and throw bim down or into a wal),
Ouher cfficen got ot 10p of Mr. Andersen, snd sceording to some, assaulted end (8sed him. The
videns show three 10 four otfizers on top of Mr, Andersen, who iz on the ground. One of the

officers appears Lo get flipped over by Mr. Andersen.
One of the witness siatemeats reported that Sgt. Bagley san over to Mr, Andersen and
told hino 10 putt his haods behind his back; when Mr. Aadersen took o step back and nsked why,

the oifices grabbed him. Another swienent reporied that the officer told Mr. Andersen be was
under arrest and then grabbed him, Atleast two of the witniesses recalled that io response tv Sgt.

Bagley telling Mr. Andersen’s wife to shut up, Mr. Andersen saido the officer, “Don’t tcl) bee
1o shut up*

508 ¢ PAX 087G © TDN Acemsm fialay ML
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1ha police seports suggast that poliee had been catled (0 o fight at the {center. One of the
that thero was fight in the lower Bnk involving

Sffices suponted that upon arrival, he was told
paretts. Ho xaw a crowd of peaple yelling, and noted thot Sgt. Bogley, who was surrounded by
pcelﬂe..posﬂeu a e while ordering him to get back. ‘The officer saw Mr. Andersen yell
someiting  at Ragley and tako a stop toward him with raised hands. The officor belicved that
Mr. Andersen was going to assauli Sy, Baglcy. The otYicer ran up, grabbed Mr. Andersen, and
began o pull him away from the crowd, Mr. Andersen bogan to *“violently thrash arsund.” Other
otficors arvived and assisted. Because My, Andersen continued 10 struggle and thrash, oac of the
afibcers usedd his Toser.

In hisrepon, St Bagley indicates that when he cntered the lower level of the rink, he
walked into 8 crowd oF 40-50 people. He saw two men, who ho later descrminod were Mr.
Ciitlin and Mr, Andarsen, standing fase 1o face. Mr. Andersen had both urms raisod sbove his
head, Sezgeaar Bugley belioved that thare was “animosity” betwoen the two. He told Mr.
Andersen to back ofY, but Mr. Andersen did nol move, Angloy walked betwoen the two and told
M: Ardersen to “beck of™ winle pushing him. According to Sgi. Bagley, Mr. Andersen
anpsaned ungry and walked rowand Bagley in an aggressive manner. At this point, & second
ofRer gradbded anto Mr. Andersen and physiestly removed him from the area. Mr. Andersen
Whs “Twisting” and Lied to pull away, He was uitimately tased. According (0 the reports, two of
the oliicers were injured by Mr. Andersen duning the Struggle, ooe sustaining 8 vut in his mouth,

The Crimina! Justior Bureau investigotes allegations of crimina) misconduct against
Nate, ard in some circumstances, local public oifivials. We will conduct an investigation when
there is reason to suspect that a crime has occurred. Given the evidence summarized above, |
canaot concinde thag there is such reason here. Even if, as your witness starements suggest, Sgt.
Bagity was mistaken sbout the nature of Mr. Andersen and Mr, Griffin's interaction, there is
insutlieient evidence to indicate thar Sge. Bagley’s beliel was unrcasonable. Sve RSA 627:5.

Attornzy DiBclla, {f you have any questions, picase don®t hesitate to call. As | mendened
whea we spoke, | have referred your complaiat asd malcrials 10 the Salem Police Department for

LA €

Lisa. L. Wolford
Senfor Assistant Attomey Guncral
Chief, Criminal Justice Bureau

adminigyatve review.

———

Ce:  Geordan 1. MacDonald, Attormey Generad
Jans B. Youny, Associate Atemey General

Paridia Conway, Rockinghum County Atterney
Puui T. Donovag, Chief, Salem Polics Department

Private and Canfidential



» o

i A Divigion of
5 Q' Kr O, ', I DUFF&PHELPS Drummond Woodsum

ATTORNEY GENERAL
DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

33 CAPITAL, STRERT
CONCORD, NEW HAMPIHIKE 033018397
-~ X, -
g . ANN M RICE

CORBON J, MALZBAINALD
2
2 Y $E JTY ATIAR. T ¥ R IEAAL,

AZTORNRY U 4 WAL 2 Dby, -_‘
Ly
:')A 4 r"‘

S

1
Masch 9, 2018

Chief Paul T. Donovan
Salem Police Depariment

9 Veterang Memorial Parkway
Salem, NH 03075

Deer Chief Donovan,

On February 27, 2018, we reccived a compluint from Attoracy Chsis Dibelia

coneerning an incident involving Stlem officers, which cccurred at the Salemn New
Hanpshire lee Centeron December 2,2017. Attomey Dibella’s client, Robert Andersen,
n with the incident. Dibelta alleged, armongst other things, that

was charged in conmectiol .
a Salem officer shoved Andersen and told Andersen’s wife to “shut the £*%* up.”
for what action you deem sppropriste. Enclosed

I am rcferring this mater (o you ; ;
on disc are the docuntents and video provided by to this office Anomey Dibella, and the
repart gencrated by the New tiampshire Department of Justice lavestigatar who took
Attomey Dibella’s call.

If T can be of additional assistance, please letme know.

Sincerely,
. Sl

Lisa L. Wolford
Senior Assistant Attomey General
Chicf, Criminal Justice Bureau
(603) 271367

LLW/mmp

Eanclosure

1984933

PAX 0032713180 ¢ TDD Accesst Ralay NH 1-800-735-00603 emmecommpmm——ee

cm—— T leghone 0NsL71-3888 ~

Privale and Confidential 86



‘ he - [—

P\

w
A Divsian of
m Kroll. , DUEF&PHELDS Drummond Woodsum

(T:::::i:‘s;hl,: ;::t; :::l;e::t:m to contact Captain Wagner, in contrast with comments provided to Kroll.
w1 pleta .his informal inquiry, wrote his report end closed the matter in less than 24

« In direct contrast with the department’s policy, Captain Wagner did not attempt to call the
complainant, claiming that he was not *chasing down complainants® and that such contact was
precluded by the complainant's being represented by counsael,

It is Kroli's opinion that making good faith efforts to speak to a complainant is certainly not chasing
them down and would represent standard practice in IA investigations or even informal inquiries. It is
also Kroll's opinion that this informal inquiry was not conducted fairly or theroughly and certainly not in
accordance with law enforcement best practices. It also was not conducted in accordance with the
Salem PD Policy GO 65-7, which states:

I POLICY: All complaints will be accepted and documented. Any investigation based on a
complaint will be conducicd in an open and fair manner, with the truth as the primary objective.
:l‘he Sglcm Police Department shall accept 2t complainis against their employees and will fully
investigate all such complaints,

All violations of Department Rules and Regulations, Code of Conduct, Policies and
Proccdures. and all other directives which accur shall be dealt with in a fair and impartial mamer,
and in accordance with the Collcctive Bargaining Agreements in place with the Town of Sajem.
In all cases where disciplingry action is taken, the employee shall receive a copy of the documented

distipline issued. (26.1.9)

Kroll further notes that in stark contrast with this department’s policy was the fact that at some point
after closing the informal inquiry, the Salem PD sought criminal complaints against two other individuals
identified in video footage of the ice center incident. The evidence supporting those atrests allegedly
came from the WBZ news footage. However, Deputy Chief Morin and Captain Wagner also told Kroll
that they had received complaints from several witnesses from the other side of the disturbance who
had come forward to dispute the camplainant’s version of events. The department accepted these
witness statements and conducted interviews of them without attempting to corroborate the accounts
by speaking to the complainant or any of the witnesses who signed affidavits in support of the
complainant’s allegations. If witnesses came forward to provide information to the Salem PD, the
department should have made every effort to gather and evaluate that information. The officers’ actions
show an acceptance of information that supports their officers and also shows a complete disregard

for any information to the contrary.

While Kroll does not claim to know what occurred at the ice rink and was not tasked with conducting
an independent investigation of the events, it is aur opinion that the Salem PD cannot conduct a fair or
comprehensive |A review without speaking to witnesses from both sides. Furthermore, an 1A
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investigation i i ; :
Thi isgc:::i: ;: :td‘mh:":::!:e review and must be conducted in parallel with a criminal investigation.
same time conducting o aq .m.\e th.e S.alem PD has conducted a criminal investigation while at the
this statement. 1t . n'flm.stratwe Investigation. Several of the IA instances noted above confirm
e Sh ent. Howevaer, it is imperative that these investigations remain separate to avoid any
indication of potential retaliatory charges.

Captain Wagner noted the following in his interview:

MR. LINSKEY: But you can look at the video and if ~ if all of & sudden the guy is
handcufied and people kicked him five limes in the head

CAPTAIN WAGNER: A hundred percent.

MR. LINSKEY: But we don't have that, that's not -

CAPTAIN WAGNER: We -- we don't have it and I'm a hundred percent agreeing with
you, handcuffs go on, it’s over.

MR. LINSKEY: Okay.
CAPTAIN WAGNER: But it — it didn't oceur. So, in — in speaking to her about that, she

— we got into talking about the — about the — the fact that we arrested two additional

people from it and, you know, her

MR. LINSKEY: Two addilional people?
CAPTAIN WAGNER: Yeah, yup. Her initial response to that was, well that Jooks

retaliatory, I'm like, well, it may look that way but without getting into it, additional
evidence was uncovered and the — we had proof of it, as a result of you giring that
video. | didn't have that video, it was actually discovered when | — | got the CD.

MR. LINSKEY: The third one?

CAPTAIN WAGNER: Yeah. When -- when | was reviewing it for the intemal review |
came across some of this stuff and showed it to the -- the guys involved and they're
like, oh shit, yeah, there it is, and then they found out some additional video of the guy
on the ice or whatever, so that's whal it is, it's the guy that went out on the ice and —
did you say the — the — the guy that slapped the officer?

MR. LINSKEY: | heard there was one other and that — so | recelved a call from her
again saying, did you know they 're bringing complaint against the guy who slapped the
officer’s hand? I said, nope. She said, yup, they 're going to get a warrant for him, they
toid him you're going to turn himself in. | said oh, okay, thanks, Cheryl. And | also spoke
to Cheryl and the attorney and said, because the attomey called me, look, we are not
doing a review of the intemal affairs cases, just so we're clear, I'm not -
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CAPTAIN WAGNER: You said this?

MR. LINSKEY: Yeah.

CAPTAIN WAGNER: To who?

MR. LINSKEY: Cheryl Fiandaca and Dabella.

CAPTAIN WAGNER: But you are.

MR. LINSKEY: No, we're not. I'm doing a review of the process. Who -- I'm not going
to interview people about --

CAPTAIN WAGNER: Well, okay —

MR. LINSKEY: I'm not going to inferview the people about, you know, is — is - is, you
know, what did you say, did -- what did you see, -

CAPTAIN WAGNER: No, —
MR. LINSKEY: ~ I'm not pulling my own video, I'm not doing my own independent

review of what happened af the skating rink or any of these events.

CAPTAIN WAGNER: No -- no - no, you're not doing your own investigation but you're
— you're questioning the ~ the steps and tactics and - and — and verbiage and phrases
and things that we said and the way we did things in the — in the individual

fnvestigalions.

This investigation was not compliant with the Salem PD policy. This investigation did not meet
acceptable best practices for internal reviews. Not only did this investigation not meet acceptable best

practices, but these actions undermine the integrity of the Salem PD. Further, it is Kroll's opinion that

there was a significant failure by the department’s leadership in their accepting this investigation as a

complete effort.

Internal Investigation (formal) IA #18-01: Officer BB
A review of this formal investigation from January 2018 shows that Captain Dolan investigated a failure

of Officer BB to keep a current certification for his K-9, as well as payroll inconsistencies related to
training dates. The findings of failure to maintain narcotics certification was sustained, as well as a
finding of failure to keep required department records. The allegations of collecting pay for training
days without being in attendance were unfounded. Despite the sustained findings of two policy
violations, it is unknown what discipline, if any, was recommended or issued to Officer BB, as there is

no documentation of such with this packet.

This investigation was compliant with the Salem PD policy. This investigation did not meet acceptable

best practices for internal reviews, as it lacked documentation.
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